ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS' AFFAI RS
March 21, 2017
1: 02 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Chris Tuck, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Justin Parish
Representative |Ivy Spohnhol z
Represent ati ve George Rauscher
Representative Lora Rei nbold
Representati ve Dan Saddl er

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
PRESENTATI ON: ALASKA FORGET ME NOT CCQALI TI ON
HOUSE BI LL NO. 165
"An Act relating to hiring for positions in state service based
on substitution of mlitary work experience or training for
civilian work experience or training requirenments.”
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 165

SHORT TI TLE:. STATE PERSONNEL ACT: VETERANS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) PARI SH

03/ 08/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 08/ 17 (H) MV, STA

03/ 16/ 17 (H M.V AT 1:00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 16/ 17 (H) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 21/ 17 (H) M.V AT 1: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER
VERDI E BONEN, Director of Veterans Affairs

Ofice of Veteran Affairs
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA)

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- March 21, 2017



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a presentation on the Al aska Forget M
Not Coalition.

OCTAVI A THOWPSQON, State Fami |y Program Director

Al aska National CGuard

Joi nt Base El nendorf-Ri chardson (JBER), Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered information and answered questions
during the presentation on the Al aska Forget Me Not Coalition.

MAGEN JAMES, State Community Support Coordi nator

Arnmy OneSource

Anchor age, Anchorage, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during the presentation
on the Al aska Forget Me Not Coalition.

ROBERT EDWARDSON, St af f

Representative Justin Parish

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Explained HB 165 to the conmttee, on
behal f of Representative Parish, prinme sponsor.

DAN WAYNE, Attorney

Legi sl ati ve Legal Counsel

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HB 165.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:02:41 PM

CHAIR CHRIS TUCK called the House Special Committee on Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 1:02 p.m
Representati ves Rei nbold, Spohnhol z, Parish, Rauscher, and Tuck
were present at the call to order. Represent ati ves Saddl er and

LeDoux arrived as the neeting was in progress.

PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA FORGET ME NOT COALI TI ON

1: 04: 08 PM

CHAI R TUCK announced that the first order of business would be a
presentation by the Al aska Forget Me Not Coalition.

1: 04: 42 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- March 21, 2017



VERDI E BOWEN, Director of Veterans Affairs, Ofice of Veteran
Affairs, Departnent of MIlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA), gave
a presentation on the Al aska Forget Me Not Coalition. He stated
that the coalition wll reflect the heart of the comunity in
serving active mlitary, veterans, and their famlies. The
coalition started under a nental health and substance abuse
grant received several years ago. When the federal funds were
gone, the program continued nostly through volunteers and
t hrough sone small funds fromthe Ofice of Veteran Affairs.

MR. BONEN stated that the vision of the coalition is for
Al aska’s service nenbers, veterans, and famlies to be supported
and cared for within their communities. He referenced slide 2
in a PowerPoint presentation [included in the conmttee packet].
The mssion of the programis to educate, inform and to |ink
Al askan communities, service nenbers, veterans, and their
famlies to ensure a healthy future. He explained that the
coalition is the local vehicle that helps veterans "reach into"
pr ogr ans. Sonetinmes in Alaska, veterans and their famly
menbers have i ssues. For exanple, the coalition was contacted
regarding a veteran who was out of stove oil in the mddle of
wi nter and unable to heat his/her honme. He stated that Catholic
Soci al Services (CSS) had received a large grant and was able to

help that veteran right away. To reach sonme of the prograns
avai |l abl e, veterans nust know those prograns exist. He stated
that is wvirtually the role of the Al aska Forget M Not
Coal i tion. He remarked, "It allows us to look at all of the

prograns that are out there that provide services to the
mlitary and the veterans and their famlies."

MR. BOAEN drew attention to slide 3 and stated that the
coalition"s focus is on conmmunity outreach & education

st at ew de coordi nation and col | abor ati on, and strategic
part ner shi ps. The coalition's structure 1is a steering
conmmttee, with alliances under the steering commttee. He
explained that he and M. OCctavia Thonpson are part of the
comittee. He added that the [U S. Departnent of Veterans
Affairs] (VA) cane out with a community partnership called "W
VA," which is another aspect of the coalition. He stated that
under the "My VA" program the coalition has extended the
service within the program He remarked:

So, if you cone to one of our ... board neetings, you
W Il see suicide awareness fromthe VA vyou'll see the
director from the local VA healthcare there, as well
as several other nmenbers fromthe VA to help us reach

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- March 21, 2017



into not only local conmunity services but also back
into the VA for those ... [J[active] mlitary and
veterans as well.

1: 08: 29 PM

OCTAVI A THOWPSON, State Famly Program Director, Al aska Nationa
Guard, added that the [My VAl program is part of the effort
brought forth by fornmer First Lady Mchelle Qhama and Jill Biden
to join community forces with the National Guard and the active
duty services. It ains to ensure there are services throughout
comunities, so when nenbers are hone after deploynent, they
have access to resources in central |[|ocations. However, sone
Al aska National Guard nenbers mght I|ive in rural villages
wi thout the same access to resources. She renmarked, "Part of
that joining community forces is to work with the comunities to
make sure that we can get the services to our returning
veterans, as well."

MR. BOVEN referred to slide 4 and stated that coalition goals
are to: Establish Al aska Forget Me Not Coalition as the |eading
coalition on issues concerning mlitary, veterans, and their
famlies; expand resource sharing and services for mlitary,
veterans, and their famlies in rural Al aska; develop and
mai ntain functional website for service providers and mlitary,
veterans, and their famlies; and create and maintain a
mar keting plan for coalition activities.

MR. BOVWEN noted that some of the biggest problens are that one
501(c) may do simlar work as another 501(c) or there mght be a
gap in the services it provides and soneone else mght be able
to offer separate services. He explained that nost 501(c)
busi nesses are funded through granting authorities.

1:10: 25 PM

MR. BOVEN |isted sone key partners of the Al aska Forget Me Not
Coalition found on slide 5: Al aska Legal Services Corporation;
the Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs and Al aska
National CGuard, Family Prograns; the Army OneSource; the Better
Busi ness Bureau; the Enployer Support of the Guard & Reserve;
the North Star Behavioral Hospi tal; University of Al aska
Fai rbanks (UAF) Cooperative Extension Service; U S. Departnent
of Labor's Veterans' Enploynment and Training Service; and the VA
Heal th [ Adm ni stration].

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- March 21, 2017



MR. BOWEN explained that there are specific alliances designed
wi thin the partnership. The behavioral health alliance, found
on slide 6, has quarterly, in-person, training opportunities for
service providers. The alliance tries to provide continuing
education credits at the highest accreditation |evel to people
in rural comunities to keep valid |icensing. He stated that
there are over 500 free subject matter experts provided in
Al aska and 250 free subject matter experts in mlitary culture
trai ni ng. He added that there are also free online trainings
provi ded by partners. He noted that this is provided at no cost
to the mlitary, veterans, or famly nenbers; it is provided by
part ner shi ps. He conmunicated that one such partnership with
the Departnment of Health and Social Services has a federal grant
whi ch provides free education on post-traumatic stress disorder
(PTSD), mlitary sexual trauma (MST), and traumatic brain
injuries (TBI).

1:12:17 PM

M5. THOWSON added that Southcentral Foundation provided space
for the coalition to offer training, and over 75 participants
att ended. She said the event went very well and the coalition
was able to discuss mlitary culture and offer understandi ng of
what mlitary personnel go through and how they are economcally
af f ect ed.

1: 13: 06 PM
REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD i ndi cated that she watched a vi deo about

a Navy Seal, [Anthony] Lenbo, who dealt with PTSD and conmtted
suicide. She said that the video has had 23 mllion views since

Sept enber 10. She added that there is a related website,
activeheros. org. She asked if the Alaska Forget M Not
Coalition can help this organization. She asked if there is

anything the commttee nmenbers can do to increase awareness.
She said that the reason the Navy Seal conmitted suicide was
because he was going to lose his security clearance if he asked
for help. She asked whether it is true that individuals m ght
| ose security clearance if they go for help.

1: 14: 28 PM

MR. BOVAEN answered that it was true in the past. He expl ai ned
that previously within the mlitary, if an individual had a high
security clearance and signed into nental health [services],
then his/her security clearance was inmediately suspended unti

he/ she conpleted [treatnent]. Oten, such individuals were

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- March 21, 2017



removed from their work area and were put in a job-controlled
trai ni ng environment. He stated that since that tine, which he
specul ated was about 10 years ago, the U 'S Departnent of
Def ense (DoD) has taken great strides to provide services to the
active duty mlitary and National Guard to provide themwth the
ability to come out and say, "I am having difficulties with this
I ssue. "

1: 15: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD stated that [Anthony's death] occurred
in 2010. She renarked:

If it was 10 years ago, then there's sone flaw
somewhere here in the data. Also, a |lot of people are

posting boldly under ny Facebook, because | posted
this, and it's gotten tons of views - |'m just amazed
- in the last couple days. And they say, "OCh yeah,
it's still a problem and the mlitary does not treat
people right." They start guestioning them and

treating them poorly if they say that they have
PTSD. So, | really want this to be addressed.

VR. BONEN responded that he under st ands Representati ve
Rei nbol d's concerns; he spent 23 years in the mlitary with a
high security clearance. He stated that he understands the
i ssues of PTSD and what is perceived by the mlitary nenber as
well. He remarked:

You have to envision the culture in which we're raised
in. First of all, we're tough; we stand al one; we do
t hi ngs al one. And so, a lot of tines when things
approach us that are causing us grave issues, we don't
ask people for help. That's one of the biggest flaws
that we have within the system because the nonment we
have a veteran that has an issue, a lot of tinmes they
will not ask for help. ... They won't because they
take it as a form of weakness .... The issue is
that you have to break that culture on order for
peopl e to openly come out and say, "I have an issue."

MR. BOWEN acknow edged that this is a current issue within the
military. He attributed it to raising a |ean, nean, fighting,
machine force; and that "force" admtting to having issues
because of sonmething that happened during a deploynent causes
servi ce nenbers stress.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- March 21, 2017



MR. BOWEN drew attention to a book about PTSD, which he had
passed around to conmittee nenbers, J[entitled "Tears of a
Warrior: A Famly's Story of Conbat and Living with PTSD']. He
stated that his office provides such books throughout the state
to mlitary menbers and their famly nenbers. He remarked, "As
t hey read through those books, they discover sone of the changes
that happen, so they can identify whether there's PTSD that's
evi dent . "

MR. BOVEN expl ained that individuals with PTSD who were depl oyed
for a long tinme - 9 to 15 nonths - have trouble when returning
hore. A lot of things have happened to them but they often
believe that time has stood still at hone. He counsel ed that
when such individuals cone hone after they have experienced
personal changes, they nay have difficulty reintegrating back
into famly life. He offered that their spouses and the people
around them will recognize their issues, while the individuals
believe "that is the new norm" He explained that it can be
difficult to identify PTSD because the individuals who have PTSD
may not know it thenselves because of the other changes and
experiences they have had.

MR. BOWEN said that the book he passed around describes sone
i ssues faced by the Seahorn famly, and the book is witten to
be a guide for veterans. He nmentioned that the book started as
a way for the famly nenbers to understand what their dad had
experienced in Vietnam He indicated that the book identifies
sone of the progress and |[imtations of PTSD.

1:19: 45 PM

MR. BOVEN returned to the presentation, slide 7. He nentioned
the financial/transition/enploynent alliance which offers:

regularly scheduled enpl oynent fairs; financi al literacy
training prograns both in-person and online; Mlitary Saves
Week; and transition assistance prograns. He expl ained that
there are many different prograns to try and limt stressors
that are caused by transitions in mlitary service. He said
that as people transition back to the civilian world, there are
many unknowns. He offered that the coalition ains to |essen
stress in transitions. He described that transition assistance

prograns have been successful because they are now nandatory.
1: 20: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ asked what M litary Saves Wek is.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- March 21, 2017



M5. THOWPSON answered that the event is on the active duty side
to raise awareness [of financial resources], simlar to a sexua

assault awareness nonth. She added that there is also a
"mlitary saves progrant which |ooks at financial resources both
during service and planning for retirenent. She expressed that

she is working with the National Guard Bureau to get a
contracted personal financial counselor to work with soldiers
and airnen on the new retirement system that has been
i npl enent ed. She stated that the National Guard Bureau is
having difficulty recruiting contracted personal financi a
counselors to serve Alaska for the National Guard and active
duty.

1: 22: 49 PM

MR. BOVEN drew attention to slide 8, which discussed the Lega
Alliance. He nentioned that the alliance provides |egal clinics
in Anchorage and Matanuska-Susitna (Mat-Su) which have hel ped
serve 85 veterans since January 2016. The veterans served by
the clinics are unable to pay for legal fees and need |egal
servi ces. Pro bono attorneys across the state offer these
services to veterans. He expressed his gratitude for the |ega
alliance's service to the board. He added that there has been
support for the National Guard and the reserve to train
attorneys on the Uniformed Services Enploynent and Reenpl oynent
Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA) |aw, so that the attorneys are able
to assist those called on active duty after they come back with
any issues with enpl oynent.

1: 23: 55 PM

MR. BOVEN | aunched slide 9 addressing the Faith Alliance, which
is partnered with the Chaplains within the National Guard and
the Partners in Care program The alliance networks civilian
faith communities to the mlitary community wthin and near
their congregations. It also provides energency services to
mlitary personnel in need, such as: food pantries, conflict
resol ution, and counseling.

MR. BOVEN expl ained that the clergy are sonme of the front-line
forces for individuals with PTSD to get assistance. The
chaplains of the National Guard can train clergy throughout the
state on how to best help a veteran with PTSD

1:24:57 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- March 21, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if the mlitary encourages active
duty nenbers to be involved in a faith conmunity. He asked if
it is mandatory or encouraged.

1: 25: 25 PM

MR. BOWEN answered that there is nothing nandatory about
attendi ng chapel. He explained that wthin the mlitary,
chaplains are assigned different units, and they provide health
and well-being for service nenbers. He said, "It 1is not
uncommon to be on a battlefield somewhere and have a chaplain
show up with a bag of candy."” He offered his understandi ng that

it is mandatory for the chaplains to visit with service nenbers.
He reiterated that mlitary people are not forced to go to
chapel, but it is one program within active duty and the
National Guard that is easily identified by mlitary service
menbers.

1: 26: 28 PM

M5. THOWPSON added that the chaplains are pretty nmuch the only
people from whom active service nenbers can obtain initial
counseling that is conpletely confidential. Because of that,
many sol diers and airnmen do use the chaplain in that form

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if there are any studies of
correlation between participation in a faith comunity and
| evel s of PTSD.

M5. THOMPSON conveyed that there are [correlations]. She
offered her understanding that as a marriage and famly
therapist, a belief in a higher power usually gives nore
resiliency and coping strategies for individuals.

1: 27:19 PM

CHAI R TUCK expressed that HB 100, in the House Health and Soci al
Services Commttee, would bring awareness of PTSD and would
establish a PTSD Day on June 27. He stated that awareness is
i nportant. He described that it is inmportant to try to see
where the faith-based [involvenent] helps in recovery.

1:28: 07 PM
MR. BOWNEN noved to slide 10, regarding the Child & Youth

Al liance, which holds neetings once a nonth and "Fam |y N ghts”
with the Alaska National Guard. The alliance offers

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 9- March 21, 2017



information, referral services, and collaboration in obtaining
grants to serve mlitary famlies. To date, the alliance has
provi ded $28,250 to support 4-H prograns for the mlitary youth.
He stated that the greatest thing is seeing a child - whose

parent is deployed - at any mlitary installation, because
anybody standing close to the child is called "Moni' or "Dad." He
remar ked, "Because if the individual 1is deployed, that's
something that the «child readily identifies wth." He

enphasi zed the inportance of caring for those children as those
famly nenbers are deployed and finding ways for those children
to release the stressors they have. He indicated that the
impact [of those stressors] may show up in the form of
behavi oral issues.

1:29: 40 PM

M5. THOWPSON added that she is very proud of the active teen
council in the National Guard, which is mde of teens who have
parents currently serving in the National Guard. The teens
recently told Comm ssioner [Laurie] Hunmel their plans and goal s
for the program Ms. Thonpson noted that a recent cultural

exchange program held in Bethel allowed sonme teen counci
nmenbers a chance to see and experience Wstern Alaska and to

nmeet children of other guard nenbers. She said the event was
amazi ng. She said that when the children in Bethel |[earned
about the event, the group went from about 15 to 42 kids. She
stated that the teen council nenbers, who were nostly from
Anchorage and Fairbanks, learned how to cut fish and pick
berries. They nade bl ueberry pie, which they took to elders in
the comunity, and they also cleaned up the cenetery. She
enphasi zed that the programis goals were for the teens to help
the community and |earn about the culture. She infornmed the

conmttee that another simlar event is planned for this year.
1:31: 26 PM

CHAIR TUCK stated that the "Parents and Teachers" program in
Fai rbanks is very active on the mlitary bases. He noted that
the "Home for Heroes" program has weekly parent neetings and a
monthly meeting with all the famlies involved in the Parents
and Teachers program He indicated that this effort ended up
being a kind of support group for the deployed famlies. He
said there is nore funding for pre-K in the education budget
this year, and he hopes that the mlitary uses it. He remarked:

| know that when the mlitary had cut it back for a
l[ittle while from federal noney, ... when we were able

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -10- March 21, 2017



to make it back up with state noney, you were able to
see ... the night and day difference between having
t he program and not having the program So, hopefully
we can get that going for you

1:32:30 PM

VR. BONEN drew attention to the «coalition's web site
f orget nenot coal i ti on. org. He explained that the website
provi des: resources for service providers for hiring veterans;
enpl oynent services for service nenbers, veterans, and famly
nmenbers; and a calendar of events throughout the state. He

indicated that there is a big problem across the nation, which
is that many people are doing wonderful things, but the people
who need help sonetinmes don't [hear about what is available].
He said if service providers are not able to reach people
t hrough the calendar, then they can call the coalition, and the
coalition will reach out to people in [the service providers']
conmuni ti es.

MR. BOVEN sunmari zed that the coalition offers many services for

mlitary famlies and has great val ue. He stated that he and
Ms. Thonpson have strategi zed ways to keep the program goi ng and
are applying for any available grants. He offered his belief

that the program has been blessed by the many people who have
offered to help by signing three-year agreenents to participate,
i ncludi ng Chancel | or Dean Case. He noted that the coalition
started about five years ago. M. Bowen said that Magen Janes
knows the nobst about the prograns, has been one of the biggest
advocates for the coalition to date, and has witten nost of the
agreenents, work requirenents, and alliances.

1: 36: 38 PM

M5. THOWSON added that M. Janes works for "Arny OneSource,”
which is funded by the Ofice of the Secretary of Defense (0OSD)
and, unfortunately, [won't exist any |onger] nationw de, as of
August . She explained that the work that M. Janes currently
does for the coalition will fall to M. Thonpson and M. Bowen.
She expressed that they have a |ot ahead and they are |ooking
for partners within the coalition to step up and provide sone of
the services currently fulfilled by Ms. Janes.

1: 37: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked MVs. Jamnes whet her t he
di scontinuation of the programis a foregone concl usion.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- March 21, 2017



1: 38: 13 PM

MAGEN  JAMES, State Community  Support Coor di nat or, Ar ny
OneSource, responded that as a frontline enployee for Arned
Forces Services Corporation, which holds the contract for Arny
OneSource, she has been told it is a foregone concl usion. She
stated that the program manager, M. Yvonne 4 over, has been
asking for feedback from comunity nenbers on how the
elimnation of Arny OneSource wll affect the activities and
community coll aborations. She added that if the conmttee
menbers would like to submt feedback to the program manager,
they can e-mail her, and she will forward those e-mails to M.
d over. She said Ms. Gover is actively working to keep the
Secretary of Defense, the VA Secretary, and the U. S. Departnent
of the Arnmy wupdated on the comunity pulse regarding the
elimnation of the program

1: 39: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD comrended Ms. Janes for doing a great
job and for the choice for the nane of the coalition. She
expressed that it was a privilege to hear the presentation, and
she described M. Janes' having brought the book, Tears of a
Warrior, as either serendipity or divine intervention, as people
have been contacting her about PTSD.

1: 40: 16 PM

CHAI R TUCK said he received the book |ast year from M. Bowen at
PTSI Day, and he characterized the book as being very val uable
for famlies of returning heroes who have seen things people
hope to never see. He agreed that the title of the coalition,
forget ne not, is appropriate for the organization. He noted
that mlitary personnel are doing great things to protect
America and when they return home they are underrecogni zed. He
explained that legislative citations are a good and appropriate
way to recogni ze t hese hero' s efforts for Al aska' s
nei ghbor hoods, comunities, and the country.

1:41: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked what |ines of support, other than
Arny OneSource, are presently provided to veterans - especially

those dealing with PTSD or other injuries. He asked if M.
James is expecting a discontinuation of any other lines of

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -12- March 21, 2017



support currently benefitting veterans, and he asked how the
committee can prevent those discontinuations.

1:42: 35 PM

M5. JAMES answered that the Arnmy OneSource program does not
offer direct services, but rather it connects organizations to
ensure collaboration and build relationships. She expressed
that a lot of federal prograns are "feeling the pinch," but she
is unaware of any other prograns that are expected to be cut.

She maintained that is a good thing for service nenbers. She
characterized that the beauty of the coalition is that it is al

about collaboration: if one organization is unable to take on a
pro-bono case, another organization can help. She put forth

that the coalition may have a few "bunps in the road" with the
elimnation of the Army OneSource program but the coalition's
strength lies in the 150 partners across the state.

M5. JAMES stated that the partners have worked together for the
last five years to provide amazing quantitative outcones, and
with M. Bowen and Ms. Thonpson's |eadership noving forward, the
coalition will be fine. She assured that everyone involved nust
keep a pulse on what's happening with the federal governnment and
trends with service nenbers, veterans, and famlies. Doi ng so
will allow the coalition to be prepared to proactively handle
any energing issues instead of reacting to situations. She
expressed that wth continued collaboration, awareness, and
mut ual support of prograns, the coalition will be fine wthout
the Arny OneSource program

1: 44: 41 PM

CHAIR TUCK thanked the coalition representatives for the
presentati on.

HB 165- STATE PERSONNEL ACT: VETERANS

1: 44: 51 PM

CHAI R TUCK announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 165, "An Act relating to hiring for positions in
state service based on substitution of mlitary work experience
or training for civilian work experience or trai ni ng
requirenents.”

1: 45: 27 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -13- March 21, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH, as prinme sponsor, presented HB 165. He
poi nted out that Al aska has nore veterans per capita than any
other state; nore than 200 veterans return to the state every
nmonth. He stated that veterans report that finding a job is the
main barrier to transitioning from mlitary to civilian life.
He stated that HB 165 would reduce the potential of veterans
m ssing job opportunity that they are qualified to fill.

1: 46: 18 PM

ROBERT EDWARDSON, Staff, Representative Justin Parish, Al aska
State Legislature, explained HB 165 to the conmttee, on behalf

of Representative Parish, prine sponsor. He stated that the
proposed bill would add to the State Personnel Act, which is
found under AS 39.25.150. The proposed |egislation would set

procedures currently used by the Departnent of Adm nistration
for accepting the substitution of mlitary know edge, skills,

and abilities as qualifying for state classified positions to
meet mninmum qualifications. The bill would also allow the
Departnent of Admnistration to establish a procedure or

regulation to substitute mlitary experience for mninum
qualifications in sonme cases.

MR. EDWARDSON assessed that the bill would change the hiring
process, which involves six separate stages for state classified
servi ces: recruitnent, application, pre-interview screening,

interviews, reference checks, and hiring. He explained that the
first three stages are where veterans nmay be inadvertently
chased away for sone recruitnents. An agency wll advertise a
vacant position, listing the requirenents for the position, the
desired traits and characteristics for the ideal applicant, and
m ni mum qual i fications. He expressed that a veteran may decide
not to apply for a job because he/she feels that he/she does not
meet the m ninum qualifications, although he/she may have traits
of an ideal candi date.

MR. EDWARDSON offered an exanple from his life as a 20-year
coast guard veteran and a state hiring manager. He renmarked:

Kate was a non-conm ssioned officer in the U S. Coast
Guard. As one of her collateral duties, Kate was
required to be a law enforcenent boarding officer.
She attended the maritine |aw enforcenent acadeny at
the federal law enforcenment training center in
Charl eston, South Carolina. She then conpleted ... a
rigorous training process at her hone wunit, then

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -14- March 21, 2017



performed nunerous cases a federal |aw enforcenent

of ficer.

What knowl edge, skill, or ability did this collatera
duty give to Kate? Well, in school, ... in her duty,
she would have |earned authority and jurisdiction in
general : how | aws, regul ati ons, pol i ci es, and
procedures, and that sort of thing relate to the
overal | framework  of gover nnment interaction and
government intervention into people' s |lives. She
woul d have ... learned defensive tactics and the use
of force, which ... isn't just dressing up in the red
gear and beating each other up. You learn to naintain
effective working relationships - officer presence,
just how you present yourself, without speaking verba
commands - and clear conmunication. She'd learn
crimnal investigation, which for mny state |obs

would correspond to research techniques, witing
protocols, and independent adjudications for a |ot of

the different departnents ... [wherein] people apply
for ... permts or they apply for sone sort of
consi deration sonmewhere. People who've had this

experience woul d be ideal for that.

MR. EDWARDSON said part of being a l|law enforcenent boarding
officer is being an instructor, which requires effective witten
and oral communi cation and nmaki ng presentations. He noted that
he has been a manager in the Departnment of Natural Resources,
and he conpared the exanple to a Natural Resource Specialist II
He expressed that people like Kate would not qualify for the
j ob; however, he offered his assessnent that they would do very
well in the job.

1: 51: 36 PM

MR. EDWARDSON stated that the bill would not take jobs away from
non-vet eran Al askans, but would add otherwi se qualified veterans
to candidate pools to be interviewed. Currently, candidate
pools have many highly qualified and capable non-veterans, and
HB 165 would put veterans in the sane hiring pool as other non-
vet erans. He stated that there is a zero fiscal note from the
Department of Adm nistration. He said that regul ations would be
required. He conveyed that the conmittee has helped nake
transition easier for veterans by filling gaps in law, and he
added that HB 165 would fill another gap. He wurged the
commttee to support the proposed | egislation.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 15- March 21, 2017



1:52:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said that the bill |ooks famliar, and she
asked if a simlar bill had been introduced previously.
1:53: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH answered, "Not to ny know edge."

MR. EDWARDSON responded that there is a legislative research

report J[included in the <conmttee packet], which |oosely
sumari zes related |egislation. He proffered that HB 2 had
al ready been through the conmmttee this year, and three years
ago a Senate  bill assisted mlitary nenbers regarding
prof essi onal |icensing.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX concl uded that the Senate bill is what she

was t hi nking of.
1:53:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if there is anything that currently
prevents a veteran from having his/her mlitary experience
counted in an application.

MR. EDWARDSON answered that the Division of Personnel currently
follows [Standard Operating Procedure] (SOP) 04, which allows
people to wuse their mlitary experience to neet mninum
qgual i fications. He offered his understanding that SOP 04 does
not allow people to substitute mlitary experience for
qualifications.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what docunentation is used to
verify or docunent the mlitary training a veteran has received.

MR. EDWARDSON answered that there are a nunber of different
docunents for different services. There are requirenments for
filing systens, both paper and electronic, to keep training
records. He explained that within the Coast Guard, there is an
"admi ni strative remark sheet 3307," which supervisors often use
to docunent certain types of experience - both good and bad. He
added that awards can be used as docunmentati on.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the administrative remark
sheet 3307 is a state or mlitary form

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -16- March 21, 2017



MR. EDWARDSON answered that it is a Coast Guard form found in
t he Pay, Personnel, and Procedures manual .

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER offered his understanding that DoD has
worked to address this issue and has tried to inprove service
records for the mlitary resune to nake them nore transferable
and conprehensible to civilian enployers. He asked if that
effort has had its desired effect.

MR. EDWARDSON responded that other than in times of war, the
Coast @uard falls under the Departnment of Honel and Security, not
DoD directives. He said that over the years there have been
several "plain |anguage” witing guides to reduce the use of
[mlitary] jargon and acronyns.

1: 56: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SPCOHNHOLZ asked whether the intention of HB 165
is to ensure that transferrable mlitary experience and skills
can substitute for mninum qualifications in applying for state
j obs.

MR. EDWARDSON answered that is one of the goals. He expl ai ned
that the Departnent of Adm nistration currently uses a standard
operation system that allows people to use mlitary credit to

meet mnimum qualifications; the proposed bill would set this
practice as law instead of policy, naking it unchangeable by
policy decisions. He added that the intent of the bill is to

allow applicable mlitary experience to substitute for mninmm
qgual i fications.

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ stated that she supports the intent of
the proposed bill to ensure that transferable skills are
recogni zed as inportant. She commented that there have been
clear exanples in the past of translation problens, and she
enphasi zed the inportance of ensuring that mlitary experience
is translated in a way that is understandable to people in

civilian managenment. She expl ained that she has tried to decode
what soneone's experience in the mlitary nmeant in a civilian
cont ext . She stated that the task can be chall enging. She
menti oned that she wants to make sure that HB 165 would not
allow "seat time" in a non-related field to substitute for
actual relevant skills and experience. She asked whether M

Edwar dson is confident that the substitution of skills would not
qualify a person for a job for which he/she m ght not have the
skills.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -17- March 21, 2017



MR. EDWARDSON responded that first draft of the bill contained
"nore neat" than the draft by Legislative Legal and Research
Services, which he clained is the superior version. He
remar ked:

The way that it's drafted allows the professionals -
the Departnment of ... Admnistration, D vision of
Personnel - to set those policies, to wite those
regul ati ons. And | think they would probably be the
better ones to answer how you would avoid doing that,
[toO] C. make sure that it is ... aut henti c
experi ence.

MR. EDWARDSON said that after working wth the Coast CGuard for
22.5 years, he affirned that the record keeping is rigorous. He
conveyed that research and docunentation is not "puffed up.” He
said, "Does it happen? Perhaps, but | think it would be pretty
rare."”

2:00: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH added that the bill stipulates that the
mlitary experience or training should neet or exceed the
position requirenents. He stated that nerely being present

woul d not be adequate, unless nere presence were the initial
requirenent.

MR. EDWARDSON said that the school nentioned in a previous
exanple gives "ace credits.” He explained that the schools
often have third parties verify the authenticity and rigor of
experi ence.

2:01: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ clarified that she is not concerned
that people in the mlitary are not earning authentic experience
or that there would be inflation of the experience in the
records. She explained that her concern is that the experience
is clarified and relevant [to the job].

2:02: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if "seat tinme" means that a person
was present and sitting on a seat.

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ clarified that she used the term "seat
time" to refer to the tine a person worked or served in the

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 18- March 21, 2017



mlitary, but not [to refer to] the quality or characterization
of the work.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX pointed out that the statute tal ks about a
veteran or a fornmer prisoner of war. She asked how soneone
could be a prisoner of war and not be a veteran.

2:03: 24 PM

MR. EDWARDSON noted that it is witten that way nmultiple tines
within the State Personnel Act.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX repeat ed her questi on.

2:03:42 PM

DAN WAYNE, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Services, answered that he doesn't think a
person could be a prisoner of war and not a veteran.

2:04: 05 PM

CHAI R TUCK proposed that a contract enployee with DoD could be a
pri soner of war.

2:04: 41 PM
VERDIE BOWNEN, Director of Veterans Affairs, Ofice of Veteran

Affairs, Departrment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA)
responded that it is possible to be a prisoner of war wthout

being a veteran. He pointed out that when all the famly
menbers and civilians that were held by the Japanese during
Wrld VWar |1 were released from captivity, they were eligible

for the "defense of the Philippines nedal" and were provided
pri soner of war status and rights.

2:05:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX of fered her under st andi ng t hat
international treaties do not allow naking a prisoner of war
wor k.  She asked how a prisoner of war could devel op experience
as a prisoner of war w thout working.

MR. BOWEN offered his understanding that the experience would
cone before or after their prisoner of war status. He said that
a lot of things are witten in international treaties that are
vi ol ated when people beconme prisoners of war. He remarked, "W

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -19- March 21, 2017



don't have to go far back in time, we could just go to the Hanoi
H lton and think of what those prisoners of war went through
during their tinme there." He nmentioned his belief that after
the first gulf war there were prisoners of war. He offered his
recollection of seeing a female major speak before the U S.
Senate about the issues she experienced during her tinme in
captivity. He explained that there had been expeditious
viol ati ons of the Geneva Conventi on.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX conveyed her belief that prisoners of war
have gone through horrendous experiences. She questioned
whet her those experiences translate to civilian jobs.

MR. BOVEN responded that he would not know how to translate that
experience either.

2:07:33 PM

CHAI R TUCK announced that HB 165 was hel d over.

2:08: 04 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Committee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 2:08 p. m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 20- March 21, 2017



